State of Texas County of Bexar City of San Antonio



Meeting Minutes

City Council A Session

City Hall Complex San Antonio, Texas 78205

2021 – 2023 Council Members

Mayor Ron Nirenberg Mario Bravo, Dist. 1 | Jalen McKee-Rodriguez, Dist. 2 Phyllis Viagran, Dist. 3 | Dr. Adriana Rocha Garcia, Dist. 4 Teri Castillo, Dist. 5 | Melissa Cabello Havrda, Dist. 6 Ana Sandoval, Dist. 7 | Manny Pelaez, Dist. 8 John Courage, Dist. 9 | Clayton Perry, Dist. 10

Thursday, September 1, 2022

9:00 AM

Municipal Plaza Building

The City Council convened a regular meeting in the Norma S. Rodriguez Council Chamber in the Municipal Plaza Building beginning at 9:21 AM. City Clerk Debbie Racca-Sittre took the Roll Call noting a quorum with the following Council Members present:

PRESENT:	10 -	Nirenberg, Bravo, McKee-Rodriguez, Viagran, Rocha Garcia, Castillo,
		Cabello Havrda, Sandoval, Courage, Perry
	4	

ABSENT: 1 - Pelaez

PROCEDURAL

1. Invocation

The invocation was delivered by Dr. Kan'Dace Len Brock, Lead Pastor of The Message Church and Associate Vice President of Student Engagement and Community Relations for Jesse C. Fletcher, guest of Councilmember Viagran, District 3.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

Mayor Nirenberg led the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Approval of minutes for the City Council meetings of August 10, 2022, August 11, 2022, August 16, 2022, August 17, 2022 and August 18, 2022.

Councilmember Rocha Garcia moved to Approve the minutes of the City Council meetings of August 10, 2022, August 11, 2022, August 16, 2022, August 17, 2022 and August 18, 2022. Councilmember Viagran seconded the motion. The motion carried by the following vote:

- Aye: Nirenberg, Bravo, McKee-Rodriguez, Viagran, Rocha Garcia, Castillo, Cabello Havrda, Sandoval, Courage, Perry
- Absent: Pelaez

POINT OF PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

Councilmember Castillo recognized Union members in the audience and the upcoming Labor Day holiday, noting its history and current significance to San Antonio. Mayor Nirenberg announced the opening of the new downtown Labor Plaza, a Public Art project.

Councilmember Viagran asked representatives of South Texas Blood and Tissue Center to announce the results of the summer City Council Challenge Blood Drives.

Councilmember Viagra announced that September was Peripheral Artery Disease Awareness Month.

Councilmember Bravo stated that this year was the 50th anniversary of the Senior Nutrition Program and recognized members of the City-County Joint Commission on Elderly Affairs.

Councilmember Cabello Havrda honored the memory and service of Pearl Harbor Survivor Heinz Bachman who died at the age of 100.

Councilmember McKee-Rodriguez recognized the 100th birthday of Lula Bell Daniels.

ACTION ITEMS FOR STAFF BRIEFING

4.

2022-09-01-0636

Ordinance approving an Implementation Plan for the distribution of State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds for Mental Health Services and establishing criteria for such funding. [Erik Walsh, City Manager; Claude A. Jacob, Director, Health]

Deputy City Manager Maria Villagomez presented the plan development process which included a community input that resulted in the Implementation Plan recommendations that \$26 million be

distributed to provide services for those impacted by COVID-19 in four categories: Youth (\$15 million), Older adults (\$5 million), Homeless (\$5 million) and Collaboration (\$1 million). Deputy City Manager Villagomez outlined the eligibility and scoring criteria to be included in the Request for Proposals (RFP) and noted that the funding term was two years. Deputy City Manager Villagomez closed her presentation with a timeline for the RFP and overview of the entire solicitation process.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

Whitni Toson encouraged the City to provide RFP applicants with a list of current providers so that large and small organizations could partner.

Eric Estrada with the non-profit San Antonio Clubhouse encouraged City Council to think differently about Mental Health and spoke in support of the Item.

Doug Beach representing the National Alliance on Mental Illness (NAMI) spoke in support of the Item.

DISCUSSION:

Councilmember Cabello Havrda, Chair of the Public Safety Committee, thanked the staff and Members of the Committee and commented that while \$26 million was a lot of money, mental health was a huge public safety concern and there was a great need. She spoke about the extensive public conversation and the focus on helping those with mental health issues while reducing the stigma.

Councilmember McKee-Rodriguez supported the investment in "upstream" intervention services to help those struggling with mental health early on and included prevention as well as treatment. He thanked the community members who advocated for the investment in mental health and noted that these services needed to be accessible to all residents, particularly the Lesbian, Gay, Transgender, Queer, plus (LGBTQ+) community. Councilmember McKee-Rodriguez supported providing funding for small organizations, and those with nontraditional methods of intervention.

Councilmember Sandoval thanked all of the community members and the San Antonio Youth Commission for their input on the Plan. She commented that struggles related to basic needs for food, housing and physical health (including COVID-19) adversely impacted mental health. Councilmember Sandoval supported investment in stigma reduction, a national mental health phone line, anti-isolation programs for senior citizens, and the framework that included significant collaboration.

Councilmember Sandoval recommended that substance abuse prevention and treatment be included in the Plan as well as networking opportunities for proposers. Deputy City Manager Villagomez stated that through the RFP process, the goal was to provide access to services and augment what was already available in the community and added that the planned workshops could serve as a networking event and the City would provide a list of existing partners. Councilmember Rocha Garcia asked who was responsible for the ARPA plans. Deputy City Manager Villagomez stated the individual departments would oversee and report to council, while ARPA Administrator Gwen Estrada would report to the United States Treasury on behalf of the City. Councilmember Rocha Garcia asked why we didn't just use the 9-8-8 number for mental health. Deputy City Manager Villagomez stated that there needed to be more study on the services of 9-8-8 and potential education of the public to call 988 versus 9-1-1. City Manager Erik Walsh added that there needed to me more review of how 988 would interface with 9-1-1

Councilmember Rocha Garcia asked if San Antonio had joined the governor's challenge to prevent suicide among service members, veterans and their families. Deputy City Manager Deputy City Manager Villagomez stated the City had joined the Challenge to End Veteran's Homelessness in 2018. Councilmember Rocha Garcia asked how the various funding allocations had been determined. Deputy City Manager Villagomez stated that the amounts were derived through community input and the Committee which recommended an approach to create connection to existing services with the hope that appropriate agencies would apply under the RFP. Councilmember Rocha Garcia requested an ARPA dashboard and information about the research on emotional learning and recommended funding for Bridges to Care.

Councilmember Courage asked how the RFP would handle Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) and could the funding be used to train more mental health workers. Claude Jacob, Metro Health Director, responded that some of the organizations that applied under the RFP would provide ACES services. Deputy City Manager Villagomez stated that the RFP would provide services through agencies that already had the staff and expertise but did not include training.

Councilmember Courage noted that there was a focus on youth under 18 and persons over age 65 but commented that there was a significant population in the missing age range that was at risk. Deputy City Manager Villagomez stated that funding was available for victims' domestic violence, the San Antonio Community Outreach and Resilience Effort (SA CORE) Team was also funded to address mental health through the police department, and programs for employees, all would be regardless of age. Councilmember Courage encouraged preventative programs over retrospective ones.

Councilmember Courage requested more information on the survey of seniors regarding the services and hours of the Senior Center and suggested a broader questionnaire that asked about specific times and weekend services.

Councilmember Viagran commented on the thoughtful work of the Committees related to ARPA and stated that "upstream" services focusing on prevention were critical. She listed some non-profits that she had met with to discuss mental health needs and commented that there were many qualified agencies that could address the mental health crisis. Councilmember Viagran recommended a focus on youth and seniors but suggested a partnership with Bexar County to focus on ages 20-64.

Councilmember Viagran recommended an analysis of what it would take to develop a crisis hotline call center here in San Antonio or a regional collaboration and suggested further conversations regarding the priorities of the City.

Councilmember Perry commented that the City received its first allocation of ARPA in May 2021 and was happy that the City was finally issuing an RFP. He asked for the amount of administrative costs to oversee the ARPA programs and requested a breakdown by funding pillar. Deputy City Manager Villagomez stated that there was a total of \$3 million city-wide to oversee the entire ARPA Grant, not just mental health funding.

Councilmember Perry recommended specific RFP language that indicated that the funding was temporary and communicated that collaboration was expected. Deputy City Manager Villagomez stated that the proposer's sustainability plan was a required part of the RFP and there was an additional five points for collaboration. Councilmember Perry requested the specific outcome metrics of the proposals to be presented to City Council. Deputy City Manager Villagomez stated that evidence based outcomes were required as a part of the RFP and would be reviewed by subject matter experts along with a pre and post evaluation conducted by Metro Health and would be included in the City Council memorandum before they voted on the contracts.

Councilmember Castillo supported the expansion of SA Stand Up and Project Worth using ARPA Funding. She asked how areas would be targeted for the mental health programs. City Manager Villagomez explained that the target would include an analysis of census tracts with high mental health hospitalizations and 9-1-1 calls and an Equity Atlas score of 6 and higher.

Councilmember Castillo asked if the extension of senior services hours would allow access to the basketball courts for youth for those multi-generational centers. Deputy City Manager Villagomez stated that the focus of the Senior Center was on seniors, but that youth were another portion of the RFP. Councilmember Castillo recommended assistance for caregivers and family of those with mental health issues as well as small business owners who might be stressed. She supported the focus on children aging out of foster care and recommended permanent supportive housing. Councilmember Castillo noted that yesterday was Overdose Awareness Day and supported the San Antonio Fire Department's Opioid Response Unit particularly for services in Council District 5.

Councilmember Rocha Garcia stated that her staff called 9-8-8 during the meeting and told her that 9-8-8 would send Police if it was deemed necessary but the automated message asked several questions and then re-routed callers to a local crisis center which might not be available 24 hours a day. She supported funding to make services available 24/7. Councilmember Rocha Garcia further commented that there were empty buildings across from Haven for Hope that could be redeveloped to provide permanent supportive housing.

Councilmember McKee-Rodriguez wanted to ensure that services were not concentrated only in one service area and expressed concern about the availability of 9-8-8. Deputy City Manager

Villagomez stated that there should be more analysis of the services provided by 9-8-8 and asked Chief Mental Health Officer Jessie Higgins to provide more information about 9-8-8. Higgins stated that the calls were rerouted to the Bexar County Crisis Line which was answered 24 hours a day by the Center for Health Care Services. Deputy City Manager Villagomez committed to providing an update on staff research related to 9-8-8 at the next Public Safety Committee. Additionally, Councilmember McKee-Rodriguez suggested training unwanted pit bulls as service dogs.

Mayor Nirenberg noted that the 9-8-8 crisis line was new and City leaders needed to be aware of the needs to provide services. He appreciated the speed and efficiency that staff had brought forward with Implementation Plan and thanked staff and City Council for their work, noting there was much more to be done.

Councilmember Cabello Havrda moved to Approve. Councilmember McKee-Rodriguez seconded the motion The motion prevailed by the following vote:

Aye:Nirenberg, Bravo, McKee-Rodriguez, Viagran, Rocha Garcia, Castillo, Cabello
Havrda, Sandoval, Courage, PerryAbsent:Pelaez

CONSENT AGENDA

Purchase of Services, Supplies and Equipment

5.

2022-09-01-0637

Ordinance authorizing the City to use the State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) contract DIR-TSO-4288 with Carahsoft Technology Corporation to provide the City of San Antonio with licensing, development, and implementation services for the Economic Development Department's Salesforce Content Management platform for an estimated total cost of \$200,642. Funding in the amount of \$140,000 for the implementation and development of the Salesforce platform is included in the FY 2022 - FY 2027 Capital Improvement Program. Funding in the amount of \$42,000 is from the FY 2022 Adopted General Fund budget. Funding in the amount of \$18,642 for additional licensing is contingent upon City Council approval of the annual budget. [Ben Gorzell Jr., Chief Financial Officer; Troy Elliott, Deputy Chief Financial Officer, Finance]

Councilmember Sandoval moved to Approve on the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Cabello Havrda seconded the motion. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:Nirenberg, Bravo, McKee-Rodriguez, Viagran, Rocha Garcia, Castillo, Cabello
Havrda, Sandoval, Courage, PerryAbsent:Pelaez

Capital Improvements

6.

2022-09-01-0638

Ordinance approving an Advance Funding Agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation for payment to TxDOT in an amount not to exceed \$17,441 for administrative oversight of federal funds and accepting \$1,659,573 in Highway Safety Improvements Program infrastructure to include improvements of traffic signals at four locations, an FY 2023 Traffic Signal Installation project. Funding is available from the General Fund and is contingent upon approval of the FY 2023 Adopted Budget. [Roderick Sanchez, Assistant City Manager, Razi Hosseini, Director, Public Works]

Councilmember Sandoval moved to Approve on the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Cabello Havrda seconded the motion. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:	Nirenberg, Bravo, McKee-Rodriguez, Viagran, Rocha Garcia, Castillo, Cabello
	Havrda, Sandoval, Courage, Perry
Absent:	Pelaez

7.

2022-09-01-0639

Ordinance approving a task order to a Job Order Contract with Amstar, Inc. in the amount of \$346,177.24 for the Cortez Branch Library HVAC Improvements, a FY 2022 Deferred Maintenance funded project. Funding is from FY 2022 Tax Notes and included in the FY 2022 - FY 2027 Capital Improvements Program. [Roderick Sanchez, Assistant City Manager; Razi Hosseini, Director, Public Works]

Councilmember Sandoval moved to Approve on the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Cabello Havrda seconded the motion. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:Nirenberg, Bravo, McKee-Rodriguez, Viagran, Rocha Garcia, Castillo, Cabello
Havrda, Sandoval, Courage, PerryAbsent:Pelaez

8.

2022-09-01-0640

Ordinance approving a task order to a Job Order Contract including an additive alternate with Lee Construction and Maintenance Company in the amount of \$322,328.76 for the Guerra Branch Library Improvements project. Funding is from prior debt proceeds included in the FY 2022 – FY 2027 Capital Improvement Program. [Roderick Sanchez, Assistant City Manager; Razi Hosseini, Director, Public Works]

Councilmember Sandoval moved to Approve on the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Cabello Havrda seconded the motion. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Nirenberg, Bravo, McKee-Rodriguez, Viagran, Rocha Garcia, Castillo, Cabello

Havrda, Sandoval, Courage, PerryAbsent:Pelaez

9.

2022-09-01-0641

Ordinance awarding the 2023 Pavement Preservation Package 3 - Base Repair Task Order Contract to J&P Paving Co., Inc. in an amount not to exceed \$1,926,870.94 of which \$20,375 will be reimbursed by San Antonio Water System and \$4,950 will be reimbursed by CPS Energy for necessary adjustments to their existing infrastructure. [Roderick Sanchez, Assistant City Manager; Razi Hosseini, Director, Public Works]

Councilmember Sandoval moved to Approve on the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Cabello Havrda seconded the motion. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:	Nirenberg, Bravo, McKee-Rodriguez, Viagran, Rocha Garcia, Castillo, Cabello
	Havrda, Sandoval, Courage, Perry
Absent:	Pelaez

10.

2022-09-01-0642

Ordinance awarding the 2023 Pavement Preservation Package 4 - Base Repair Task Order Contract to J&P Paving Co., Inc. in an amount not to exceed \$1,976,895.94 of which \$20,375 will be reimbursed by San Antonio Water System and \$4,950 will be reimbursed by CPS Energy for necessary adjustments to their existing infrastructure. [Roderick Sanchez, Assistant City Manager; Razi Hosseini, Director, Public Works]

Councilmember Sandoval moved to Approve on the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Cabello Havrda seconded the motion. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:Nirenberg, Bravo, McKee-Rodriguez, Viagran, Rocha Garcia, Castillo, Cabello
Havrda, Sandoval, Courage, PerryAbsent:Pelaez

Boards, Commissions and Committee Appointments

11. Approving the following Board, Commission, and Committee appointments for the remainder of an unexpired term of office to expire May 31, 2023 [Debbie Racca-Sittre, City Clerk] A. Appointing Sarah Zimmerman (District 5) to the City of San Antonio Commission on Education B. Appointing Michael Valdez (District 6) to the City of San Antonio Higher Education Student Advisory Board C. Appointing Sara Gerrish (District 5) to the Mayor's Commission on the Status of Women D. Reappointing Dr. Shari Albright (District 8) to the San Antonio Early Childhood Education Municipal Development Corporation E. Appointing Jose Padilla, and reappointing Dr. Christine Burke and Erika Moe to the San Antonio Economic Development Corporation F. Appointing Aiden Gonzalez (District 1) to the San Antonio Youth Commission

Councilmember Cabello Havrda highlighted her support for Michael Valdez' appointment to the Page 8 of 12

City of San Antonio Higher Education Student Advisory Board.

Councilmember Castillo highlighted her support for the appointment of Sarah Zimmerman to the San Antonio Commission on Education and Sara Gerrish to the Mayor's Commission on the Status of Women.

Councilmember Sandoval moved to Approve on the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Cabello Havrda seconded the motion. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:	Nirenberg, Bravo, McKee-Rodriguez, Viagran, Rocha Garcia, Castillo, Cabello
	Havrda, Sandoval, Courage, Perry
Absent:	Pelaez

Miscellaneous

12.

2022-09-01-0643

Ordinance approving an Interlocal Agreement with the University of Texas Health Science Center at San Antonio to provide oral surgical services for Head Start enrollees referred by the San Antonio Metropolitan Health District, in an amount up to \$28,000 for a term ending September 30, 2023, with the option to renew for three, one-year terms, for a cumulative amount up to \$112,000, inclusive of renewals. Funding for the agreement is from the FY 2023 General Fund contingent on approval by City Council. Funding for the renewal terms is contingent on future budget appropriations. [Erik Walsh, City Manager; Claude A. Jacob, Director, Health]

Councilmember Sandoval moved to Approve on the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Cabello Havrda seconded the motion. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:Nirenberg, Bravo, McKee-Rodriguez, Viagran, Rocha Garcia, Castillo, Cabello
Havrda, Sandoval, Courage, PerryAbsent:Pelaez

13.

2022-09-01-0644

Ordinance to renew and amend an agreement with Rebecca Davenport, D.D.S to add an additional \$16,000 to provide dental clinic director services for the San Antonio Metropolitan Health District's Oral Health program for a term ending September 30, 2023, for a cumulative amount up to \$199,000, inclusive of renewals. Funding for the agreement is from the FY 2023 Medicaid 1115 Waiver Oral Health budget and the FY 2023 General Fund, contingent upon approval by City Council. [Erik Walsh, City Manager; Claude A. Jacob, Director, Health]

Councilmember Sandoval moved to Approve on the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Cabello Havrda seconded the motion. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Nirenberg, Bravo, McKee-Rodriguez, Viagran, Rocha Garcia, Castillo, Cabello Havrda, Sandoval, Courage, Perry

Absent: Pelaez

14.

2022-09-01-0645

Ordinance amending two agreements with the University of Texas Health Science Center at San Antonio related to the San Antonio Metropolitan Health District's Healthy Neighborhoods program for continuation of tobacco prevention and program referral services through September 29, 2023 and increasing the compensation of one agreement by \$40,929 for a total compensation not to exceed \$156,479. Funding is from the CDC-funded REACH Healthy Neighborhoods grant. [Erik Walsh, City Manager; Claude A. Jacob, Director, Health]

Councilmember Sandoval moved to Approve on the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Cabello Havrda seconded the motion. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:	Nirenberg, Bravo, McKee-Rodriguez, Viagran, Rocha Garcia, Castillo, Cabello
	Havrda, Sandoval, Courage, Perry

Absent: Pelaez

15.

2022-09-01-0646

Ordinance approving agreements with Walgreen Co. for 340B drug dispensing services for a revenue amount up to \$250,000 and Cardinal Health 110, LLC and Cardinal Health 112, LLC (Cardinal Health) to serve as the 340B prescription drug wholesale distributors for an amount up to \$250,000 associated with the San Antonio Metropolitan Health District's participation in the 340B Prescription Drug Pricing Program for a term commencing October 1, 2022 and ending September 30, 2023, with options to renew for two, one-year terms.[Erik Walsh, City Manager; Claude A. Jacob, Director, Health]

Councilmember Sandoval moved to Approve on the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Cabello Havrda seconded the motion. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:Nirenberg, Bravo, McKee-Rodriguez, Viagran, Rocha Garcia, Castillo, Cabello
Havrda, Sandoval, Courage, Perry

Absent: Pelaez

16.

2022-09-01-0037R

A Resolution expressing the City's official intent to reimburse costs incurred to plan, design, renovate, construct, expand and equip improvements to the San Antonio International Airport. [Ben Gorzell, Jr., Chief Financial Officer, Troy Elliott, Deputy Chief Financial Officer]

Councilmember Cabello Havrda, Chair of the Transportation Committee highlighted her support of the Item.

Councilmember Sandoval moved to Approve on the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Cabello Havrda seconded the motion. The motion carried by the following vote: Aye:Nirenberg, Bravo, McKee-Rodriguez, Viagran, Rocha Garcia, Castillo, Cabello
Havrda, Sandoval, Courage, PerryAbsent:Pelaez

17.

2022-09-01-0647

Ordinance authorizing professional services agreements with FREED Texas, WestCare Texas and San Antonio Rising Stars, Inc. to provides services in connection with the San Antonio Police Department's (SAPD) Community Crime Prevention Program. Funding in the amount of \$250,000 is available from FY 2022 Confiscated Property Fund Budget. The terms for each agreement are one-year with a one-year extension option. This ordinance also authorizes a one-year extension of the 2021 Community Crime Prevention Program agreement with WestCare, Texas. [Maria Deputy City Manager Villagomez, Deputy City Manager; William P. McManus, Chief of Police]

Councilmember McKee-Rodriguez highlighted his support of the Item.

Leonora Walker, CEO and Founder of FREED Texas, a local non-profit organization to assist formerly incarcerated persons reintegrate successfully and eliminate recidivism, spoke in support of the Item.

Councilmember Sandoval moved to Approve on the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Cabello Havrda seconded the motion. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:Nirenberg, Bravo, McKee-Rodriguez, Viagran, Rocha Garcia, Castillo, Cabello
Havrda, Sandoval, Courage, PerryAbsent:Pelaez

18.

2022-09-01-0648

Ordinance adopting the NE I-35 and Loop 410 Area Regional Center Plan so that is becomes a component of the City's Comprehensive Master Plan. The Area Regional Center Plan covers a 7-square mile area generally bound by Thousand Oaks (beginning at the intersection with Wetmore Road and moving clockwise) including properties in Block 51 NCB 17192 and NCB 15837 with frontage on Thousand Oaks and Park Crossing Drive, Park Crossing Drive, Scarsdale, Clear Lake Drive, Uhr Lane, Thousand Oaks, Chapala Way, Casa Oro, Encanta, Leonhardt Road, and Railroad Right-of-Way to the north; Old O'Connor Road, O'Connor Road, Randolph Boulevard, and South Weidner Road to the east; the City Limit Line abutting the City of Windcrest, Walzem Road, and Austin Highway to the south; Perrin Beitel, northern boundary of the Perrin Park Subdivision, Railroad Right-of-Way, the western boundary of Lot 10 NCB 11964, the eastern boundary of Lot 3 Block 1 NCB 16483, the eastern boundary of Lot 37 Block 3 NCB 15863, Wurzbach Parkway, Nacogdoches Road, Wayward Drive, John Speier, Lazy Oak Drive, Rompel Drive, Drainage Right-of-Way and CPS Easement, the southwestern boundary of NCB 13753, and Wetmore Road (ending at the intersection with Thousand Oaks) to the west. [Roderick

Sanchez, Assistant City Manager; Bridgett White, Director, Planning Department]

Councilmember Sandoval moved to Approve on the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Cabello Havrda seconded the motion. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:Nirenberg, Bravo, McKee-Rodriguez, Viagran, Rocha Garcia, Castillo, Cabello
Havrda, Sandoval, Courage, PerryAbsent:Pelaez

City Manager's Report

City Manager Erik Walsh announced that the City was recognized by the National Inclusion Alliance for its investments in reducing the digital divide.

City Manager Walsh announced that the San Antonio Chamber of Commerce tribute to women business leaders recognized Deputy City Manager Villagomez with an award for her contributions.

City Manager Walsh played a video spotlighting PreK 4 SA Employees.

Executive Session

There was no Executive Session.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further discussion, Mayor Nirenberg adjourned the meeting at 11:35 PM.

Approved

Ron Nirenberg Mayor

Debbie Racca-Sittre City Clerk